ASSIGNMENTS OF ERROR 


A. 	The Circuit Court Erred In Holding That Blue Ridge Bank Took On A Full Assignment 
ofAll Lessor Duties and Obligations Under the Non-Escrow Lease. l 

B. 	 The Circuit Court Erred In Failing to Hold That The Lack Of Signature By Blue Ridge 
Bank Violated The Statute of Frauds. 

C. 	 The Circuit Court Erred In Failing To Hold That Comvest Held The City's Funds In An 
Agency Capacity And In Holding That Comvest Was Not To Give Money To The City. 

D. 	 The Circuit Court's Summary Judgment Order Erred In Holding That The City Of 
Fairmont's Election OfA Non-Escrow Agreement Was Irrelevant. 

E. 	 The Circuit Court Erred Regarding The Lease "Hell Or High Water" Clause And In 
Failing To Grant Summary Judgment In Favor Of Blue Ridge On Its Counter-Claim. 

F. 	 The Circuit Court Erred In Denying The Nunc Pro Tunc Motion. 


STATEMENT OF THE CASE 


This case involves the embezzlement of over $500,000 in funds by Comvest, LTD, Inc. 

("Comvest") that were part of a municipal Non-Escrow Lease with the City of Fairmont 

("City"). After Comvest filed for bankruptcy, the City filed the original complaint in this matter 

on March 15,2012. The City later sought leave to amend and added Blue Ridge as a defendant. 

The operative complaint is the Second Amended Complaint. Blue Ridge removed the civil 

action to Com vest's bankruptcy case as an adversary proceeding but the matter was ultimately 

remanded to the Marlon County Circuit Court. The City and Blue Ridge filed cross motions for 

summary judgment and the Circuit Court ruled in favor of the City. Blue Ridge attempted to file 

a motion to alter or amend that summary judgment order but experienced an electronic filing 

malfunction. Blue Ridge filed a motion seeking to have the motion to alter or amend deemed 

filed nunc pro tunc as of the date of the filing malfunction. The Circuit Court denied that motion 

as well. This appeal involves both orders. 

I This assignment includes the assignment oferror listed with the Notice ofAppeal that the Circuit Court 
erred in failing to consider parol, or extrinsic evidence. 



SUMMARY OF ARGUMENT 


Municipalities in West Virginia are prohibited from incurring debt beyond certain 

budgetary restraints so they finance purchases through leases rather than loans. Here, Comvest 

was a lease broker operating a leasing program through the West Virginia Municipal League. In 

a typical lease, a municipality would contact Comvest with a need to finance a purchase, 

Comvest would locate a lender such as Blue Ridge Bank (formerly Page Valley Bank) ("Blue 

Ridge"), to provide the financing and the lender would finance the purchase and receive an 

assignment of the payment stream along with a security interest. 

In establishing a lease with Comvest, a municipality may elect to have funds placed in 

escrow. In this case, the City elected not to place the funds in escrow. As a result of this 

election by the City, the lease documents were structured so that Blue Ridge immediately paid 

over $1,000,000 directly to Comvest upon execution of the lease documents and presentation of 

an assignment.2 Under the Non Escrow Lease, Comvest expressly retained the obligation to 

disburse funds at the City's request through issuance of a payment request form. There is no 

dispute in this case that Blue Ridge ceased to have any control over those funds once the City 

authorized and directed the transfer of those funds to Comvest. 

After the City made a successful request to Comvest for a reimbursement of out-of

pocket expenses in the amount of $573,054.42, the City discovered that Comvest had embezzled 

over $500,000 of the City's funds. Comvest and its principals filed bankruptcy thereafter. Blue 

Ridge faithfully performed its obligation to fund the lease proceeds to Comvest as was requir~ 

by the Non-Escrow Lease. The evidence clearly shows that Comvest retained the lessor 

obligations and that the City continued, well after execution of the Non-Escrow Lease, to treat 

2 The non-escrow lease at issue is the Master Equipment Lease! Purchase Agreement dated September 8, 
2009 (''Non-Escrow Lease") JA 891-930. 
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Comvest as the party that still owed the lessor obligations under the lease. Only after the City 

discovered it could not obtain any meaningful recovery from Comvest or its principals, did the 

City set its sights on Blue Ridge to suffer the loss. The City took the latent position that Blue 

Ridge became the lessor under the lease because of an assignment executed by the City Om! 

NOT executed by Blue Ridge). In that way, the City argued that Blue Ridge failed to fulfill its 

lessor obligations under the lease and therefore, the City was not liable to pay the balance of the 

lease payments owed to Blue Ridge. Although there is an assignment that purports to grant the 

lessor's right title and interest under the Non-Escrow Lease to Blue Ridge, there are limitations 

within the Non-Escrow Lease itself as to what may be assigned. More importantly, there is no 

signature or consent by Blue Ridge to take on any lease obligations. Blue Ridge, a lender, 

financed the lease and took an assignment of a right, the payment stream. 

In its summary judgment order, the Circuit Court misapplied the law of assignment 

versus delegation and found that Blue Ridge took a complete assignment of all the lessor duties 

and obligations under the Non-Escrow Lease, notwithstanding the lease limitations and the lack 

of signature or consent by Blue Ridge. The Circuit Court likewise failed to find that Comvest 

held the City's funds in an agency capacity and further failed to find that the City bore the risk of 

loss by electing not to escrow the funds and directing Comvest to hold the City'S funds. 

After entry of summary judgment, Blue Ridge attempted to file a motion to alter or 

amend the summary judgment order but experienced an electronic filing malfunction. Blue 

Ridge then sought permission to have the motion to alter or amend deemed filed nunc pro tunc 

as of the date of the attempted filing. The Circuit Court held that because Blue Ridge had no 

receipt of email notification verifying the filing as successful, Blue Ridge could not obtain relief 
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under Trial Court Rule, 15.13, designed to address unsuccessful filings due to an electronic filing 

malfunction. The instant appeal involves both of the Circuit Court's orders. 

STATEMENT REGARDING ORAL ARGUMENT AND DECISION 

Given that there appears to be no case law directly governing the questions presented 

surrounding embezzlement ofmunicipal lease funds and the corresponding issues of assignment, 

agency and risk of loss, the Court should permit oral argument under Rule 20 to explore the 

issues of first impression in this case. 

STANDARD OF REVIEW 

The Circuit Court's Summary Judgment Order is reviewed under the de novo standard. 

Painter v. Peavy, 192 W. Va. 189, 192,451 S.E.2d 755, 758 (1994); Rubin Res., Inc. v. Morris, 

787 S.E.2d 641, 645, 2016 W. Va. LEXIS 506, *8 (2016) (We review the circuit court's 

[summary judgment] decision de novo, according no deference to the legal conclusions reached). 

As for the standard of review for the Nunc Pro Tunc Order, Blue Ridge has located no 

specific case addressing the applicable standard. However, Blue Ridge is informed and believes 

it would carry the same standard as used for review ofappeals involving procedural rules: clearly 

erroneous as to factual findings and de novo for conclusions oflaw. See Wolfe v. Adkins, 229 

W. Va. 31, 35, 725 S.E.2d 200, 204 (2011) (As to the County's motion for a new trial, authorized 

under Rule 59 of the West Virginia Rules of Civil Procedure, the standard of review, likewise, 

includes a de novo component, i.e., the inquiry on appeal concerns whether the ruling of the 

circuit court constituted an abuse of discretion, subject to a clearly erroneous standard as to 

findings of fact and a de novo standard as to conclusions of law). 
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STATEMENT OF UNDISPUTED FACTS 

The General Municipal Leasing Concept and Structure 

There are statutory limitations preventing West Virginia municipalities such as the City of 

Fairmont ("City") from incurring debt beyond certain annual budgetary constraints. W. Va Code § 

8-12-11. As a result, municipalities such as the City enter into lease purchase agreements to finance 

municipal purchases that would otherwise exceed budgetary constraints. ld. 

Comvest, Ltd, Inc. ("Comvest") would, upon request and application by a municipality, 

locate financing for municipalities for these leasing programs and Comvest would execute a lease, 

procure the equipment and then assign the payment stream to the lender that financed the transaction 

through an assignment of the lease. As part of execution of the lease, the municipality may elect to 

structure the lease as either an escrow funded transaction or a non-escrow funded transaction. The 

City entered into numerous leases with Comvest, both escrow and non-escrow, for the financing of 

various items. 

For example, the City and Comvest were previously parties to a Master Equipment 

LeaselPurchase Agreement dated January 14, 2003 under which the City financed $1,400,000 in 

water treatment facility upgrades. ("2003 Escrow Lease"). Joint Appendix, hereinafter ("JA") 812, 

§§ 1.2 (b) and (c) ofthat lease (and the Non-Escrow Lease in question) expressly distinguish between 

an escrow and non-escrow transaction and note the requirement of an escrow agreement if the City 

elects an escrow funded transaction. ld. The 2003 Escrow Lease was designated as an escrow 

financed transaction and was accompanied by an executed Escrow Agreement, designating First 

Security Bank as the escrow agent. JA 836-847. The 2003 Escrow Agreement expressly provides 

that the funds are placed with the Escrow Agent at closing and "are irrevocably held in trust for the 

benefit ofthe Lessee ..." JA 839 at § 3.01. 
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As another example, the City entered into a Master Equipment LeaselPw-chase Agreement 

with Comvest dated February 26,2003 for the financing of a truck. ("2003 Truck Lease") JA 849

870. The 2003 Truck Lease was designated as a non-escrow transaction and the $29,987.24 was 

immediately disbw-sed by Monongahela Bank (the financing bank) to Comvest upon execution of an 

Assignment, dated July 16, 2004. ("2003 Truck Assignment") JA 872-876. Once the final lease 

payment was made by the City, the City received a copy of the Assignment stamped "paid." Id. 

Thus, the City knew if it elected an escrow transaction, there would be an escrow agreement and the 

funds would be held by an escrow agent pending distribution. 

As explained by Eileen Layman, the City Finance Director during the City's 30(b)(6) 

deposition: 

5 Q And what's yow- understanding of the difference 
6 between an escrowed transaction and a non-escrowed 
7 transaction? 
8 A Just legal, with the trusting of the funds. 
9 Q Do you think that there's a better protection of 
10 funds in an escrow situation? 
11 A Yes. 
12 Q And why is that? 
13 A It's trust, it's in a trust. 
14 Q And to your understanding, when they're escrowed, 
15 they're typically held by an insw-ed bank? 
16 A Typically, yes. 

("Layman Deposition"), JA 881, p. 19. Conversely, the City knew that, in a non-escrow 

transaction, an assignment that transfers the lease payment stream to the lender calls for the 

immediate transfer of the financing to Comvest, without the benefit and protection of an escrow 

account. JA 872-876. Thus, prior to 2009, the City was aware through prior lease transactions 

between the City and Comvest, the City could elect to enter into an escrow transaction, where the 

funds are held in trust under an escrow agreement, or it could elect to enter into a non-escrow lease 
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transaction, where the funds are immediately disbursed to Comvest upon assignment. See generally 

JA 810-876. 

The Execution of the Non-Escrow Lease and Assignment 

In 2007 the City experienced a loss of capacity in its water filtration plant and it sought to 

upgrade the water treatment facility. JA 879: 3-15. The City approached Comvest about seeking 

financing ofthe water treatment plant upgrades through a lease: 

18 We wanted to include the debt service in the 
19 rates, and Comvest was a readily available source of funding. 
20 Because we had a history with Comvest, because they had our 
21 financials, we could get approval for the lease, so I 
22 contacted Comvest once Council approved moving forward with 
23 the project. 

JA 880.3 As a result, the City and Comvest became parties to a Master Equipment Lease! Purchase 

Agreement dated September 8, 2009 under which the City was to obtain water treatment equipment. 

("Non-Escrow Lease"), JA 891-930. Notwithstanding that the City had previously designated a 

prior water treatment upgrade lease as an escrow transaction, JA 810-847, the Non-Escrow Lease 

was created as a non-escrow transaction. JA 891-930. 

Section 11.1 of the Non-Escrow lease expressly states: "Section 11.1 Assignment by 

Lessor: This Agreement, Lessor's interest in the Equipment and the right ofLessor to receive 

payments hereunder, may be assigned and reassigned in whole or in part to one or more 

assignees or subassignees by Lessor at any time without obtaining the consent of Lessee. JA 901. 

Additionally, Section 5.2 of the Non-Escrow Lease - Rental Payments, states: "All rental 

payments shall be paid to Lessor at its offices at the address specified on the signature page 

hereof, or to such other person(s) or entity(ies) to which Lessor has assigned such Rental 

Payments . ..." JA 896. (emphasis supplied). 

3 It is noteworthy that the City Finance Director used the phrase "debt service." 
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At the time Blue Ridge was provided with a copy of the executed Non-Escrow Lease, Blue 

Ridge was also presented with an Assignment dated September 10, 2009 and signed by H. David 

Cutlip from Comvest. JA 944 at ~ 6. The Assignment expressly required Blue Ridge to immediately 

fund the amount of$1 ,070,600 to Comvest in exchange for the right to receive the payments set forth 

in the Non-Escrow Lease and corresponding amortization schedule. JA 938, ~ 2(b). 

The City never requested that the Non-Escrow Lease be designated as an escrow transaction. 

The Non-Escrow Lease was already designated a non-escrow transaction prior to its presentation to 

Blue Ridge and there was therefore no obligation placed upon Blue Ridge to escrow or otherwise 

protect the funds disbursed to Comvest. JA 891-930. Blue Ridge did not select Comvest to arrange 

the lease financing transaction between the City and Comvest. JA 945, ~ 12. 

The Non-Escrow Lease included an attachment designated as a Payment Request Form 

(attachment 10, page 25 of the Non-Escrow lease), JA 922. The Payment Request Form calls for 

Comvest to make payment to a designated Payee upon request by the City. This designation of 

Comvest as the party receiving Payment Request Forms was built into the Non-Escrow Lease and 

such designation did not change after assignment to Blue Ridge. The City issued multiple Payment 

Request Forms to Comvest, all ofwhich were issued to Comvestafter execution and financing ofthe 

transaction and after executi.on of the Notice and Acknowledgement of Assignment. Payment 

Request Forms, JA 951-959. 

Additionally, the City paid Comvest a fee of$11 ,000 for its services. Layman Deposition, JA 

882: 14-20. Conversely, Blue Ridge never paid Comvest any fee for any services. JA 945 at ~ 13. 

Blue Ridge had no ability, after presentation of the Assignment and funding of the Non-Escrow 

Lease, to direct or control any portion of the funds provided to Comvest under the Assignment. JA 

945 at~ 14. At no time during the performance of the Non-Escrow Lease did any representative 
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of the City indicate to Blue Ridge in any way that there was some unperfonned lessor obligation that 

they expected Blue Ridge to perfonn. JA 945 at,-r 15. As stated by the City Finance Director: 

24 Q I'm just asking if you're aware of a specific 
25 covenant or requirement that the bank was obligated to do 

---[ P 73]--
1 something after it provided financing. 
2 A I wasn't aware of anything. 

Layman Deposition, JA 883-884. 

Importantly, all equipment that Comvest was required to procure under the Non-Escrow 

Lease was ultimately provided to the City. Specifically, the tangible "Equipment" component of 

the Non-Escrow Lease represented $480,000 in equipment for which funds were actually paid to 

GE Water and Process Technologies. JA 885: 15-23; See also JA 926. The balance of the Non-

Escrow Lease funds represented installation costs. JA 885: 15-23; See also JA 926; JA 930. It is 

undisputed that Comvest provided the City with $537,054.42 after Blue Ridge funded the entire 

$1,070,600 to Comvest, a sum well in excess of the tangible equipment component of the Non-

Escrow Lease. JA 1228, ,-r 18. 

Section 9.2 of the Non-Escrow Lease provides - "Installation and Maintenance of 

Equipment" states that Lessor shall have no obligation to install, erect, test, inspect, service, 

or maintain the Equipment under any circumstances, but such actions shall be the 

obligation of the Lessee or the Vendor. JA 900. (emphasis supplied). 

Comvest's Embezzlement and The Aftermath 

At some point in March of 2010, the City learned that Comvest had effectively embezzled 

the balance of the City's funds, approximately $507,000, held by Comvest under the Non-Escrow 

Lease. Second Amended Complaint, JA 14 -15 at ~ 21-23. The City Attorney authored a 

memorandum indicating that: "I am sending Jim Christie a demand letter and advising him of our 
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claim. If he doesn't respond we'll sue Comvest, Ltd. and all other Comvest entities, possibly 

Weslaco, The Municipal League and anybody else we can get ahold of" JA 963. 

Additionally, the City Attorney wrote a letter dated March 18, 2010, over six months 

after Blue Ridge provided the financing for the Non-Escrow Lease, to the principals of Comvest 

stating that "Comvest was obligated to disburse the money for the benefit of the City." JA 968, 

Letter from Kevin Sansalone, City Attorney to David Cutlip and James Christie dated March 18, 

2010. Moreover, the letter expressly demands Comvest to pay over $512,500.00 "or otherwise 

provide reasonable assurances that Comvest, Ltd., Inc. has the financial means to and will honor 

its obligations under the Lease. Id. (emphasis supplied). The City clearly continued to treat 

Comvest as the party with continuing obligations under the Non-Escrow Lease. Id. 

Comvest filed its chapter 11 bankruptcy case on April 2, 2010 and the case subsequently 

converted to a case under Chapter 7. Case no -1: 10-bk-00838 NDWV. Under its original Complaint, 

the City initiated the above-styled civil action seeking recovery from the West Virginia Municipal 

League, James Christie and David Cutlip. JA 79-88. Comvest's principals, James Christie and H. 

David Cutlip, also filed individual chapter 7 ban1cruptcy cases - case numbers 1:12-bk-00076, 1:13

bk-00286, NDWV. After the Bankruptcy Court denied stay relief to proceed against Mr. Christie, 

and after the filing of Mr. Cutlip's bankruptcy, the City filed a motion in the Circuit Court for leave 

to file its Second Amended Complaint to, among other things, add Blue Ridge to assert a claim that 

the City's balance due to Blue Ridge under the Non-Escrow Lease should be modified on account of 

Comvest's embezzlement. JA 231-233; JA 21, Count VI. 

The City's Second Amended Complaint asserts that "Comvest owed the City and the public a 

fiduciary duty and a duty of trust with regard to the proceeds from the Lease-Purchase Agreement." 

JA 245, ~ 52. The City Finance Director agreed: 
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9 Q If you flip to Page 8, Paragraph 52, the Complaint 
10 alleges that Comvest owed the City and the public a fiduciary 
11 duty and a duty of trust with regards to the proceeds from the 
12 Lease Purchase Agreement. Would you agree with the allegation 
13 that Comvest owed the City a fiduciary duty and a duty of 
14 trust? 
15 A Yes. 

JA 889. The City's Second Amended Complaint further asserts that "[t]he misapplication of the 

money or property ofthe City in possession ofComvest was a breach of said fiduciary duty and duty 

oftrust." JA 19, ~ 54. 

Blue Ridge removed the case to Bankruptcy Court and the Bankruptcy Court ultimately 

remanded the civil action back to the Circuit Court for disposition. JA 612-618. The West Virginia 

Municipal League filed West Virginia Municipal League's Motion to Transfer Venue and 

Incorporated Memorandum of Law in Support Thereof, seeking a change ofvenue on the grounds 

that it would be difficult to obtain an fair adjudication of a case involving embezzlement of City 

water treatment facility funds from the area the water treatment facility serves. JA 620-629. The 

Motion to transfer Venue was denied by the Circuit Court. JA 682-683. 

The City confirmed during the Finance Director's 30(b)( 6) deposition that Blue Ridge did 

nothing improper under the Non-Escrow Lease: 

4 Q In your position as Finance Director, is there 

5 anything in the history of this particular transaction or in

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