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

This is precisely why Blue Ridge Bank is not entitled to any more payments or money from the 

City ofFairmont because pursuant to the clear and unambiguous language of the Master 

Equipment LeaselPurchase Agreement the City of Fairmont is not obligated to make payments 

pursuant to the Master Equipment LeaselPurchase Agreement absent full performance of the 

Lessor's obligations thereunder. It also bears repeating that the parties agree that Comvest did 

not perform its duties and obligations pursuant to the Master Equipment LeaselPurchase 

Agreement. 
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Blue Ridge Bank argues that the Restatement of Contracts supports its position that the 

City must pay to it the remaining amounts it claims due under the Master Equipment 

LeaselPurchase Agreement absent full performance thereof by either it or Comvest. In making 

this claim to the Court it completely ignores the unavoidable truth that the Restatement of 

Contracts totally eviscerates all of its arguments and that said arguments, as noted by the circuit 

court, are irrelevant. Section 336 of the Restatement (Second) of Contracts is captioned 

"Defenses Against an Assignee" and states the following: 

(1) By an assignment the assignee acquires a right against the 
obligor only to the extent that the obligor is under a duty to the 
assignor; and if the right of the assignor would be voidable by the 
obligor or unenforceable against him if no assignment had been 
made, the right of the assignee is subject to the infirmity. 

(2) The right of an assignee is subject to any defense or claim 
of the obligor which accrues before the obligor receives 
notification of the assignment, but not to defenses or claims which 
accrue thereafter except as stated in this Section or as provided by 
statute. 

(3) Where the right of an assignor is subject to discharge or 
modification in whole or in part by impracticability, public policy, 
non-occurrence of a condition, or present or prospective failure of 
performance by an obligee, the right of the assignee is to that 
extent subject to failure ofperformance by an obligee, the right of 
the assignee is to that extent subject to discharge or modification 
even after the obligor receives notification ofthe assignment. 

(4) An assignee's right against the obligor is subject to any 
defense or claim arising from his conduct or to which he was 
subject as a party or a prior assignee because he had notice. 

Looking to the comments to Section 336 the Restatement further enlightens the reader as 

to what exactly is meant by this Section: 

b. Accrued defenses. Unlike the negotiation ofa negotiable 
instrument, the assignment of a non-negotiable contractual right 
ordinarily transfers what the assignor has but only what he has. 
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(emphasis added) The assignee's right depends on the validity and 
enforceability of the contract creating the right, and is subject to 
limitation imposed by the terms of that contract and to defenses 
which would have been available against the obligee had there 
been no assignment. 

The Restatement is perfectly aligned with the common law in West Virginia upon 

which the circuit court relied: "When there is an assignment of contract rights, the assignee 

obtains its rights from the assignor and, thus, stands in the shoes of the assignor and acquires the 

same rights and liabilities as if it had been an original party to the contract." Women in Military 

Servicefor America Memorial Foundation, Inc. v. Hartford Fire Ins. Co., 21 Fed. Appx. 186, 

192,2001 WL 1334179, *4 (4th Cir. Oct. 30,2001); State v. Scott Runyon Pontiac-Buick, Inc., 

194 W. Va. 770,461 S.E.2d 516,526 n.14 (W. Va. 1995) "In essence, the assignee is standing in 

the shoes of the seller." Lightner v. Lightner, 146 W. Va. 1024, 124 S.E.2d 355, 362 (W. Va. 

1962) "[An] assignee acquires no greater right than that possessed by his assignor, and he stands 

in his shoes." Lemley v. Phillips, 113 W. Va. 812, 169 S.E. 789, 790 (W. Va. 1933) "In general, 

an assignee stands in the shoes of his assignor." McCoy v. South Energy Homes, Inc., 2012 U.S. 

Dist. LEXIS 56594, *37-39,2012 WL 1409533 (S.D. W.Va. Apr. 23, 2012). Comvest could 

not/cannot collect from the City and thus neither can Blue Ridge Bank. 

3. 	 Blue Ridge Bank Is Subject To AU Rights. Duties. And Obligations Under 
The Master LeaselPurchase Agreement And Has No Right To Demand 
Full Performance From The City Unless And Until There Is Full 
Performance Of Lessor's Duties Under The Agreement 

On September 10, 2009 Blue Ridge stood in the shoes of Comvest and owed to the City 

all of the duties and obligations of the Lessor pursuant to the Lease Agreement. The Lease 

Agreement itself states that "Lessor" shall include all persons to whom Lessor's rights under this 

Agreement have been assigned. (JA 533, Article I ofMaster Equipment LeaselPurchase 

21 




Agreement) The clear and unambiguous terms of the Lease Agreement required the Lessor (now 

Blue Ridge) to sell, transfer and lease all the Equipment to Lessee, all on the terms and 

conditions set forth in the Agreement, (JA 536, Article III, Section 3.1 ofMaster Equipment 

LeaselPurchase Agreement) Once it took the assignment of the Lease Purchase Agreement Blue 

Ridge did nothing whatsoever to provide anything to the City. The City was not involved in the 

transaction between Comvest and Blue Ridge and its only knowledge of the transaction was that 

it occurred and that it was to send payments to Blue Ridge. By virtue of the Lease Agreement 

Blue Ridge Bank had the obligation to ensure that the City received everything that was set forth 

in the Train #5 Installation - Opinion ofProbable Costs and it did not. (JA 788, opinion of 

probable cost) In fact, it provided the entire amount of One Million Seventy Thousand and Six 

Hundred Dollars ($1,070,600.00) to Comvest prior in time to the delivery let alone the 

acceptance of any physical component related to the water system upgrades as well as prior to 

Train #5 becoming functional. 

Ordinarily the assignee acquires no greater right than that possessed by his 
assignor, and he stands in his shoes. Lightner v. Lightner, 146 W.Va. 
1024, 1034, 124 S.E.2d 355,362 (1962). However, this maxim is not 
without qualification. Section 328 of the Restatement of Contracts 
(Second) provides: 

(1 ) Unless the language or the circumstances indicate the contrary, as in 
assignment for security, an assignment of "the contract" or of "all my 
rights under the contract" or an assignment in similar general terms is an 
assignment of the assignor's rights and a delegation of his unperformed 
duties under the contract. 

(2) Unless the language or the circumstances indicate the contrary, the 
acceptance by an assignee of such an assignment operates as a promise to 
the assignor to perform the assignor's unperformed duties, and the 
obligor ofthe assigned rights is an intended beneficiary ofthe promise. 
(emphasis added) 
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Kemboi v. Ocwen Loan Servicing, LLC, 2012 U.S. Dist. LEXIS 90954, *24-26 WL 2571287 
(N.D. W.Va. July 2,2012), quoting, Restatement (Second) o/Contracts § 328 

As Blue Ridge entirely failed to perform the assignor's unperformed duties it has 

breached the Lease Agreement and thus is not entitled to any payment related to the unperfonned 

duties and unsupplied material. Paying the amount of One Million Seventy Thousand and Six 

Hundred Dollars ($1,070,600.00) to Comvest is not what was required by or contemplated by the 

Lease Agreement. Rather, what the Lease Agreement quite clearly contemplated was payment, 

in full, of the vendors for the project, primarily Strand & Associates and G.E. Water Process 

Tech and other contractors required for the installation and functionality of the physical 

components of Train #5. 

No obligation on the part of the City became operative ~ess and until a valid and 

complete executed "Acceptance Certificate" was delivered to the Lessor ''within three (3) 

business days from the date ofdelivery ofthe Equipment." As no equipment was "delivered" as 

of the date of Comvest's defalcation there was never an acceptance of lease equipment and thus 

no obligation to pay on the part of the City. While there is an acceptance certificate included as 

an attached fonn exhibit to the Lease Agreement that bears the signature of then City Manager, 

John I. Rogers, III, it is not a completed acceptance certificate as it is undated and in any event 

was included in the Lease Agreement prior to funding of the Lease Agreement, let alone delivery 

and acceptance of any equipment. Furthermore, the very language of the Acceptance Certificate 

itself in paragraph 9 makes it clear that the Lessor has not fulfilled its obligations under the lease 

until the Vendor(s) has/have been paid: 

9. 	 Lessee hereby authorizes and directs Lessor to fund the acquisition 

cost of the Equipment by paying the Vendor(s) the invoice price(s) 

as set forth on the attached Description ofEquipment, and certifies 

that upon such payment, Lessor will have fully and satisfactorily 
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performed all of its covenants and obligations under the 
Agreement with respect to the Equipment 

(JA 554, Acceptance Certificate No.1 Form, p. 17 Master Equipment 

LeaselPurchase Agreement) 

While the City of Fairmont does not agree with Blue Ridge Bank's argument that it 

accepted a "right" as opposed to a delegation the end result would be the same even if they are 

correct. There is no right to receive full payment until there has been full performance as called 

for by the Master Lease/ Purchase Agreement: Therefore, until and unless Blue Ridge or 

Comvest pays for the total balance ofall the vendor invoices related to the completion of the 

project, (the City finished the project and paid for the remaining Five Hundred Six Thousand, 

Eight Hundred Twenty Three and 0611 00 Dollars ($506,823.06) of costs using other City 

resources) full and satisfactorily performance ofall of the obligations under the Agreement has 

not occurred and the City has no obligation to make any further payments to Blue Ridge. 

There are no set of circumstances short of payment in full by Comvest (or Blue Ridge 

Bank) of the total costs of the project that would require the City to pay the full amount of One 

Million Seventy Thousand and Six Hundred Dollars ($1,070,600.00) to Comvest (or Blue Ridge 

Bank). Blue Ridge Bank assumed the responsibilities of Comvest, or took the assignment 

subject to the assumption Comvest would fully perform the responsibilities, Blue Ridge Bank 

took the assignment subject to any and all defenses the City could raise against Comvest, Blue 

Ridge Bank provided to and entrusted Comvest with One Million Seventy Thousand and Six 

Hundred Dollars ($1,070,600.00) without any guarantees, representations or warranties of the 

City, the City of Fairmont neither requested nor even knew in advance that Blue Ridge Bank was 
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providing funds to Comvest and Blue Ridge Bank alone must suffer the consequences of its 

entrusting Comvest with such funds. 

4. 	 The Circuit Court Correctly Determined That Extrinsic Evidence Was 
Not To Be Considered 

As noted hereinabove since Blue Ridge Bank claims that all the facts are uncontested and 

that they previously agreed that the matter was ripe for summary judgment and that the terms of 

the Master Equipment LeaselPurchase Agreement and the Assignment were unambiguous it is 

quite puzzling that it would actually argue that parol evidence should have been considered by 

the circuit court. Once again, and as advanced hereinabove with respect to the metamorphosis of 

Blue Ridge Bank's long running, unvarnished acknowledgment that it took an assignment into its 

novel claim of taking only an assignment of a "payment stream" Blue Ridge should be estopped 

from making such a facially inconsistent claim. In any event the law on the matter is clear and 

was correctly cited and relied upon by the circuit court: "Parol evidence to prove an agreement 

between [a promisor and a promise] is inadmissible under the rule inhibiting the introduction of 

parol evidence to contradict, vary, add to, or detract from the terms of an unambiguous written 

instrument. Syl. Pt. 11, Lightner v. Lightner, 146 W.Va. 1024, 1025, 124 S.E.2d 355,357 

(1962). 

B. 	 Comvest Was Not The Agent of The City of Fairmont And Did Not Receive Funds 
From or Hold Funds From Blue Ridge Bank On Behalf of The City of Fairmont 

Blue Ridge Bank has identified the correct West Virginia case wherein this Court set forth 

factors to consider when determining if an agency relationship exists however, an analysis 

pursuant to Timberline Four Seasons Resort Mgmt. Co. v. Her/an, 223, W.Va. 730,679 S.E.2d 

329 (2009) fails to establish that Comvest was the agent for the City of Fairmont. First and 

foremost the agency argument fails because the very facts which Blue Ridge Banks asserts are 
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uncontested conclusively prove there was never a master servant relationship between the 

Comvest and the City of Fairmont. The City of Fairmont applied for a "Tax Exempt Lease." (JA 

576). Again, as Blue Ridge Bank repeatedly asserted, the terms of the Master Equipment 

LeaselPurchase Agreement speak for themselves and are unambiguous. The relationship 

between Comvest and The City ofFairmont was merely one ofLessor-Lessee as clearly defined 

in the Master Equipment LeaselPurchase Agreement. In the absence of some special contractual 

provision that specifically designated Comvest as the agent for the City of Fairmont the mere 

Lessor-Lessee relationship of the parties does not make one the agent ofthe other. Lilly v. 

Munsey, 135 W.Va. 247, 63 S.E.2d 519 (1951). 

The City ofFairmont did pay Comvest. It paid precisely as required pursuant to the Master 

Equipment LeaselPurchase Agreement and nothing more. It is hard to imagine what Lease 

Agreement wouldn't require the payment of consideration and there is nothing novel, unusual or 

indicative ofan agency relationship in the payment of consideration for a lease. Also, the 

payment of an $11,000.00 fee in a $1,070,600.00 financing transaction is not in the least peculiar 

or unusual when banks across the nation charge a .5% to 1 % origination fee in a mortgage loan 

transaction.7 No one would argue with a straight face that his mortgage lender was his agent. 

The City of Fairmont had no power ofdismissal with respect to Comvest as it had not 

employed Comvest to act as its agent. There simply was not any relationship between the parties 

that would have placed Fairmont in a position to "dismiss" Comvest. Comvest and Fairmont 

were parties to a Lease Agreement wherein their respective rights and duties are clearly and 

unambiguously defined: "Lessee hereby agrees to acquire, purchase and lease all the Equipment 

from Lessor and Lessor hereby agrees to sell, transfer and lease all the Equipment to Lessee all 

7 A 1% origination fee in this instance would be $10,760.00. 
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on the terms and conditions set forth in this Agreement." (JA p 536, Section 3.1 of Master 

Equipment LeaselPurchase Agreement). Nowhere in the agreement, which Blue Ridge Bank 

agreed was unambiguous, does it provide for any type of agency power for either party and 

nowhere does it give one party the power to "dismiss" the other. 

Likewise, and perhaps most important of all, the notion that the City of Fairmont was vested 

with any power of control over Comvest is patently absurd. Who has ever heard of or suggested 

that a Lessee has power of control over a Lessor? Ofcourse the City issued payment request 

forms to Comvest. That is what the agreement required. Ofcourse the City took the position 

that Comvest must pay the vendor invoices. That is what the agreement required. In the 

Timberline case the circuit court granted summary judgment based upon its fmding that 

Timberline Resort Realty was not owned or controlled by Timberline Four Seasons. However, 

this Court reversed that ruling because it determined that evidence had been presented to the 

circuit court showing that Timberline Four Seasons: 1. Controlled the operating checking 

account for Timberline Resort Realty; 2. Controlled the employees ofTimberline Resort Realty; 

3. Controlled payment of the operation expenses of Timberline Resort Realty; and 4. Controlled 

the payroll of Timberline Resort Realty. In this matter there has been no evidence presented to 

the circuit court that even remotely resembles the type of "control" evidence present in 

Timberline. In fact there is no evidence ofcontrol. Sending payment requests, the election of 

the type of lease agreement, requesting reimbursement are all actions that are contemplated 

and/or required by the Master Equipment LeaselPurchase Agreement. A party's adhering to the 

unambiguous requirements of a written contract is evidence of good faith and fair dealing but 

certainly not control. Moreover and once again all of these matters are irrelevant as no Court 

27 




should look beyond the four corners of the unambiguous contract concerned in this matter just as 

was correctly done by the circuit court of Marion County. 

C. 	The Circuit Court's Ruling With Respect To The "Hell Or High Water" Clause 
Was Correct And It Should Not Have Granted Summary Judgment To Blue Ridge 

~ 

The Lease Purchase Agreement contains the following provision:

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